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Deputy Commissioner

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council August 3, 2023

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT) to pay an amount not to exceed
$149,998 to Advance Transit, Inc., Wilder, Vermont (Vendor 166573) to procure thirty (30) replacement
bus-mounted bicycle racks for their bus fleet and other maintenance-related equipment effective upon
Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2024. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agreement is available in the Fiscal year 2024:

FY 2024

04-96-96-964010-2916 $ 149,998

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal

EXPLANATION

The NHDOT approved a request for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5339 Bus & Bus
Facility Program funding from Advance Transit, Inc. The funding is to replace thirty (30) bus-mounted
bicycle racks for Advance Transit's fleet and maintenance equipment to include a SEFAC lift system, tire
changer/balancer, AC Evacuation machine, and a forklift. The bicycle racks will replace the current front-
mounted bicycle racks that are showing signs of wear and are unable to accommodate electric and fat tire
bicycles. Upgrading the bicycle racks will provide expanded access to bicycle riders that are not able to
use the existing racks and preclude the transportation of their bicycle type. The maintenance-related
equipment will support Advance Transit's in-house fleet maintenance activities.

Advance Transit, Inc. is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation in the
Upper Valley region of New Hampshire and Vermont. Approximately three-fourths of Advance Transit's
ridership and services are in New Hampshire and one-fourth are provided in Vermont. Vermont and New
Hampshire entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Advance Transit on September 30,
1993, to share the cost of transit services, and that MOU remains in effect.

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING • 7 HAZEN DRIVE • P.O BOX 483 • CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
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The NHDOT released a public notice on September 27, 2022, announcing the availability of funding from
the FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program. NHDOT solicited proposals from public transit
agencies and private non-profit organizations engaged in public transportation services. Five (5) transit
agencies (Advance Transit, Inc. (AT), Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack County
(CAPBMCI), Southwestern Community Services (SCS), Tri-County Community Action Program
(TCCAP), and Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST)) applied by the November 21,
2022, deadline, and all were awarded funds for eligible projects.

A project evaluation committee consisting of three (3) Department staff from the NHDOT Bureau of Rail
and Transit reviewed and scored the 5339 applications submitted for projects. The evaluation committee
members included the Public Transportation Administrator (Frederick Butler), Transportation Specialist
(Michael Pouliot), and Transit Grants Coordinator (Paula Devens). Each reviewer evaluated and scored
applications based on the criteria indicated in the application materials. Every application met NHDOTs
criteria for inclusion in its public transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the
aforementioned transit systems. The evaluation matrix and scores are provided below for reference:

1

The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and an adequate budget to
operate the service and conduct ongoing maintenance associated with this capital
request.

20%

2

The applicant complies with relevant federal and state regulations and has a history
of compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. New applicants must
demonstrate sufficient resources for compliance.

20%

Ml

3'

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness,
measured in ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery. New
applicants must demonstrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

20%

I '

4,

The applicant conveys how this addresses a critical public transportation need.
Applicants need to adequately illustrate how the project will benefit the agency's
transportation program/services, including how it is necessary for continued and/or
improved operations. (As replacement vehicles/equipment are prioritized, detailed
information is especially important for expansion projects. Vehicle replacements
are presumed to address needs.)

25%

5

The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial
and otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government, e.g., letters of support,
willingness to provide local match above the minimum required, etc. (Vehicle
replacements are presumed to have such support.)

15%

.
Total Scoring 100%

1  Transit System Score ■ Status

Advance Transit fAT)

(30) bicvcle racks - replacement 86.2% Awarded

Advance Transit (AT)

Other Equipment -SEPAC lift system, tire changer/balancer, AC evac. 78.3% Awarded

Advance Transit (AT)

Other Equipment- Forklifl 77.3% Awarded

Communitv Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack County fCAPBMCl)

ITS Equipment Base w/CAD/AVL/AVA and Real Time 79.3% Awarded

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack County

d) ADA - small cutaway bus 16 passenger - replacement 84.2% Awarded

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack County



(1) ADA - small cutaway bus 12 passenaer - replacement 84.2% Awarded

Southwestern CommunitY Services (SCS)

Facility renovation 80.2% Awarded

Southwestern Community Services

Technical equipment - expansion 68.2% Pending

Southwestern Community Services

(3) ADA - small cutaway bus 12 passenger buses - replacements 76.7% Awarded

Tri-County Community Action Program (TCCAP)

New telephone system - replacement 74.5% Awarded

Tri-County Community Action Program

New internet system equipment - replacement 74.7% Awarded

Tri-County Community Action Program

(2) ADA - small cutaway 12 passenger buses - replacements 91.3% Awarded

Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST)

(!) ADA - small cutaway 16 passenger bus - replacement 88.0% Awarded

The total project cost is $ 179,248, which includes $59,400 (90%) for the bicycle racks and $90,598 (80%)
for the maintenance-related equipment in FTA Section 5339 funds, and $6,600 (10%) and $22,650 (20%)
Agency match, respectively. This contract reflects only the federal portions of the project for a maximum
contract amount of $ 149,998.

Advance Transit, Inc. will procure the equipment following federal procurement guidelines, pay the
vendor(s) for the total cost of the equipment, and submit an invoice to NHDOT for the federal portion.

In the event that Federal Funds are unavailable. General Funds will not be requested to support this
program.

This agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution. The NHDOT has
verified that the necessary funds are available. Copies of the fully executed agreement are on file at the
Secretary of State's Office and the Department of Administrative Services Office, and subsequent to
Governor and Council approval will be on file at NHDOT.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.

Commissioner

Attachments



FORM NUMBER G-l (version 11/2021)

Subject: SFY 2023 FTA 5339

GRANT AGREEMENT

The Stale of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. Identincatlon and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

NH Department of Transportation

1.2. State Agency Address

PO Box 483 & Hazen Dr. Concord. NH
03302-0483

1.3. Grantee Name

Advance Transit, Inc.

1.4. Grantee Address

120 Billings Farm Road, PO Box 1027 Wilder. VT
05088-1027

1.5 Grantee Phone #

802-295-1824x201

1.6. Account Number

04-96-96-964010-2916-0

72-500575

1.7. Completion Date

June 30, 2024

1.8. Grant Limitation

$149,998.00

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Frederick Butler, Public Transportation Administrator,
Bureau of Rail & Transit

1.10. Slate Agency Telephone Number

603-271-2565

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify that we have complied with
any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.11. Grantee Signature 1 / 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1

Adams Carroll, Executive Director

Grantee Signature 2

N/A

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

N/A

Grantee Signature 3

N/A

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

N/A

1.13 State Agency Signature(s) - 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)
M > c tx. L . 1 --—t-e.'' 5

Director of Aeronautics. Rail & Transit

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By; Assistant Attorney General, On:

< ^ 'W

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On:

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the Slate"), the Grantee identified in
block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly
described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to
as "the Project").
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4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5,4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Exccpi as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Grantee shall pcrfonn the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire. 9.2.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hercundcr, shall become
efTeclive on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16). or upon 9.3.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the Effective Date").
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: I.IMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:

PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C. 9.5.
attached hereto.

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C. 10.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C. and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount, 'fhe State shall withhold from the amount otherwise
payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by.the.
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete, 11.
compensation to the Grantee for the Project. The State shall have no liabilities to I I I.
the Grantee other than the Grant Ajnount.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding I I. I.I
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized. 11.1.2
or actually made, hercundcr exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of 11.1,3
these general provisions. 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In 11.2.
connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal 1 1.2.1
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including
the acquisition of any and all necessary permits and RSA 31-95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the EfTective Date and the dale seven (7) years after the Completion
Dale, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee 11.2.2
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with the
Project, including, but nut limited to. costs of udminislratiuii. Inmspoilaliun,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be .su|ijnM led by icceipts, invoices, bilU anil ulIiCi SintiUi' dociimcntJ.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion 11.2.3
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to
subparagraph 7.1. at any lime during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as 11.2.4
often as the State shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. 'ITie Grantee shall 12.
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12.1.
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that
term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters covered
by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1,3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL. 12-2.
The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to perform
the Project. The Graniec warranls that all personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project under all applicable laws. 12.3.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, subgrantcc,
or other person, firm or corporation with whoni it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the Slate hercundcr. In the event 12.4.
of any dispute bercunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final. 13.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean ail information and things
developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of. this Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports, files,
formulae. suiAcys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations.

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant to
the Stale, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data for
e.xaminaiion, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the Slate.
On and after the EfTective Date all data, and any property which has been received
from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the propcrry of the State, and shall be returned to the State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use. in whole or in pail, all data.
CGNDITIGNAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hercundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercundcr, arc contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the State
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the State shall
have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Grantee shall constitute
an event of default hercundcr (hcrcinaftcr referred to as "Events of Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule: or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hercundcr; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take anyone, or more,
or all, of the following actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and

Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the F.vcnt of Default and suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the
Oiaiii Aiiiuuiil whleh would othci-wiic accmc to the Grantee during the period
fium the dale uf siicli noiicc until such lime as the Stale determines that the
Grantee has cured the F.vcnt of Default ohoil never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set oil against any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any damages
the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursueany of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATIGN.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the dale of (enninalion.

In the event of Tcmiination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or.
except where notice default has been given to the Grantee hereunder. the Grantee,
may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of
the governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
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approval of ihe undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in 17,2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the procecd.s thereof.

.4. (IRANTEE'.S RF.LATION TO THE STATE, in the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantcc of 18.
the Grantee arc in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees, shall have authoniy
to bind the Sutc nor are they entitled to any of the benefits, woricmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

15. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or 19.
otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the Slate. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the State. 20.

16. INDEMNIFICATION. The Gnintce shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the Slate, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the Slate, it.s officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by 21.
or on behalf of any person, on account of. based on, resulting from, arising out
of (or which may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the Grantee
or subcontractor, or subgrantcc or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to
the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement. 22.

17. INSURANCE.

17.1 The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall 23.
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance;

17.1.1 Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the perfonnance of the Project, and

17.1.2 General liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and $500,000 for property
damage in any one incident: and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the Stale, and authorized to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Grantee
shall fumish to the Slate, certificates of insurance for all rencwal(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard
to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United Suies Post Oftice addressed to the parlies at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the Slate
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CON.STRUCnON OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall
be construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank arc used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of the parlies hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrccmeni. which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto arc incorporated as part of this agreement.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

EXHIBIT A Special Provisions

EXHIBIT B Scope of Services

EXHIBIT C Budget

Certificate of Good Standing

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances

FTA Master Agreement

2 CFR Part 200

Social Service Documents to Include:

501 (c)
Financial Report
Board of Directors

Key Personnel and Salaries
Resumes



Revised 0^/07/2023

ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A.I. Amend G-1 Section 2. "SCOPE OF WORK" by adding the following:

2.1. The Grantee may change the Project scope, including related services, only with the prior written
agreement of the State and in accordance with applicable Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
requirements.

A.2. Amend G-1 Section 3. "AREA COVERED" by adding the following:

3.1. Services may extend to adjacent states with prior written approval from the State. The State reserves
the right to require formal cost allocation measures.

A.3. Amend G-1 Section 5. "GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:
PAYMENT" by adding the following:

5.6. The grant, amount, as identified in Exhibit C, represents the net Federal/State amount(s) to be paid
to the Grantee. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide, and document the availability of, local
funds sufficient to meet the project cost in excess of the Grant Price Limitation.

5.7. The Grantee shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the State, together
with all information to support the request. Such requests for payment shall be properly completed
and signed. Requests for payments must be for allowable costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200.
No requests for advance payment will be accepted by the State.

5.8. Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine the
allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand production of (and the
Grantee shall produce) and inspect any documents and records described in Section 7.

5.9. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records required by
the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due and owing to the
Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this Agreement.

5.10. Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by the State and FTA of all reports required by this
Agreement is a condition precedent to final payment (i.e., payment for the last month or portion
thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of the State and Federal
Transit Administration (FTA). The final payment may be retained and withheld pending receipt and
satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this Agreement and resolution of all pending
matters.

A.4. Amend G-1 Section 6. "COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS"
by adding the following:

6.1. The Grantee shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of the Federal Title VI non-discrimination
requirements.

6.2. The Grantee shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, age, creed, sex,
or national origin.

6.3. The provisions of 2 CFR 200 shall apply to the local administration of this agreement and any
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subgrantee under this agreement.

6.4. In the event of any conflict between the requirements within this Exhibit related to Federal
requirements and Federal Clauses incorporated elsewhere into this Agreement, the Federal Clauses
take precedence.

A.5. Amend G-1 Section 9. "DATA; RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS" by adding the following:

9.6. The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of this
agreement:

9.6.1 Except for its own internal use, the Grantee may not publish or reproduce such data in whole
or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Grantee authorize others to do so, without
the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA may have either released or
approved the release of such data to the public.

9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable
license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for Federal
purposes, any work developed under a grant, cooperative agreement, subgrant, or third party
grant, irrespective of whether a copyright has been obtained; and any rights of copyright to
which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third party contractor purcha.ses ownership with Federal
assistance.

9.7. It is FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the Grantee
understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.6 (b) above, FTA may make
available to any recipient, subgrantee, grantee, or subgrantee its license in the copyright to the date
derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data first produced under this Agreement.

9.8. The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State and United Slates, their officers,
agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability, including
costs and expenses, resulting from any willful ,or intentional violation of the proprietary rights,
copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, use,
or disposition of any data furnished under this Agreement.

9.9. Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any patent or be
construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the United States
under any patent.

9.10. Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material furnished to the Grantee by the State
or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement; provided that such
incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.

9.11. In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under the project
shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the State or FTA may
direct.

A.6. Amend G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATION" by adding the following:

12.5. The termination report must be accepted by the State and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
prior to final payment.

12.6. Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Grantee which, by the
terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the completion of the Services
and upon payment of the Grant Price, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder,
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shall cease and shall be without recourse to the parties hereto.

12.8. Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either
the State or. except where notice of default has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee
may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days' written notice.

A.7. Amend G-1 Section 15. "ASSIGNMENTS/AND/SUBGRANTEES" by adding the following:

15.1. The Grantee shall cause the provisions of this grant to be inserted in all subgrants for any work
covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each subgrantee; provided,
however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to subgrantees for standard commercial
supplies or raw materials. The Grantee shall take such action with respect to any subgrant as the
State may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance.
The Grantee shall ensure that any subgrantee has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals required
for the performance of grant services.

A.8. Amend G-1 by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services described in
Exhibit B and which satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

EQUIPMENT: An article of nonexpendable, tangible personal having a useful life of more than
one year and an acquisition cost which equals or exceeds the lesser of the capitalization level
established by the governmental unit for financial statement purposes, or $5,000. Includes rolling
stock and all other such property used in the provision of public transit services.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures, and/or maps submitted to the State
detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Grants modified and approved by the
State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation services
being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include funds from subgrants, contracts, purchase of
service agreements, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the transportation service. ,

SECTION 5339: FTA's Bus and Bus Facilities Fonnula Program of Moving Ahead for Progress in
the 21" Century Act (Map-21) of 2012, as amended.

STATE: The State of New Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation, Bureau
of Rail and Transit.

A.9. Amend G-1 by adding "ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING, AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

26. ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING, AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

26.1. Maintenance of Records. The Grantee shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The Grantee shall
maintain, and make available to the State and FTA, records relating to complaints and comments
received from the public. In the event, the State disputes the Grantee's operations or records as
submitted for payment or otherwise, the final resolution shall rest with the State.
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26.2. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a period of
three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of the resolution of all matters relating to
this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as
often as the State or FTA may demand, the Grantee shall make available to the Stale and FTA or
their designecs all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall permit
the State and FTA to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits of all contracts,
grants, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel. Data (as defined in C-1 section 9.1), and
other information relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph,
"Grantee" includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Grantee in 1.3 of G-1.

26.3. General Transit Feed Specification (GFTS). The Grantee shall generate and keep updated General
Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the National Transit
Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the Department upon request.

26.3.1 The Bipartisan Infrastructure Law amended 49 U.S.C. 5335 (a) to require the Federal
Transit Administration to collect "geographic service area coverage" data through the NTD.

A.IO. Amend G-1 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Section 27:

27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. The following terms and conditions apply
to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with funds provided through this or
other Agreements between the State and the Grantee:

27.1. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.1F and future
amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts 661 and 663, as applicable.

27.2. The Grantee shall ensure that all Contractors comply with construction materials requirements set
forth in the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (lIJA) Pub. L. No. 117-58 which includes the
Build America, Buy America Act (Act) Pub. L No 1 17-58, div. G §§ 70901-17. The Contractor shall
purchase construction materials for projects in accordance with the Act, Federal implementation
guidance M-22-11, and other applicable federal laws, regulations, and guidance.

27.3. As applicable, all vehicles shall be purchased by the State unless the Grantee has received prior
approval from the State to procure vehicles.

27.4. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased by the
Grantee subject to the prior approval of the State.

27.5. Title to all project equipment shall be in the name of the Grantee; provided, however, that in order
to secure the complete performance of this Agreement, the Grantee shall give the State a security
interest in all such equipment at the time of purchase and shkW execute financing statements and do
all other acts necessary or useful to the perfection of that interest and the renewal thereof. In
connection with the purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant to this Agreement, the Grantee shall
give the State a security interest in the motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take all steps
necessary to protect the State's security interest, including taking steps to identify the State as a lien
holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

27.6. In the event that this agreement is terminated, all. project equipment and property become the
property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equipment shall be
transferred to the State as soon as feasible.
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27.7. Project equipment will be disposed of in accordance with FTA Circular 9040. IG as amended and
the Slate Management Plan unless written approval is received Prom the State.

A.ll. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing of all
nonexpendable property involved in this Agreement. The Grantee shall submit to the Stale a
certification that the equipment is still being used in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.
The inventory listing and equipment certification shall be supplied to the State by each year,
generally by June 30'^

A.I2. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:

29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. The Grantee shall be responsible for the maintenance
and repair of all equipment related to this Agreement. The Grantee shall maintain all such equipment
at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and mechanical soundness. As applicable, the Grantee shall
certify that a proper maintenance plan that meets or exceeds the original equipment manufacturer's
preventive maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must be approved by the
Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair, and physical improvement activities on equipment shall
be conducted by the Grantee and at a location specified by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the
State of any changes in this location. The Grantee further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any
physical improvement to equipment as requested by the State. The State, FTA, and/or their designees
shall have the right to conduct periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper
maintenance and repair.

A.13. Amend G-1 by adding "VEHICLE STORAGE" as section 30:

30. VEHICLE STORAGE. As applicable, with respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or
part under this Agreement', or maintained under this Agreement, the Grantee shall park or garage
each vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for each vehicle. The Grantee
shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in such a manner that its daily operations
are not impaired or curtailed by conditions of weather or any other circumstances. The Grantee shall
notify the State of the location of the garaging site and any relocation.

A.14. Amend G-1 by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 31:

31. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. As applicable, all project equipment shall be inspected and certified
by the Department of Safety and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards
and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United States Department of
Transportation, and by the New Hampshire Department of Safety under RSA 266;72-a, in the
purchase and operation of all project equipment.

31.2. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide the State with full, and prompt written notification of
any accident involving any vehicle used in its services. In addition, the Grantee shall be
responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law.

31.3. The Grantee shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset Management
or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by NHDOT for compliance
purposes.

A.15. Amend G-1 by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 32:

32. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Grantee is conceived or
first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this grant, which invention, improvement,
or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the United States or any foreign country, the
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Grantee shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed report. The rights and
responsibilities of the Grantee and the State with respect to such invention, improvement, or
discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies, and
any waiver thereof. ,

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 33:

33. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has not employed or retained
any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee, to solicit
or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other,
than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee, any fee, commission, percentage,
brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or
making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Stale shall have the right to
annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or
consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage,

brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

B. 1 Capital Purchases

1.1 The Grantee, Advance Transit, Inc. (hereinafter the "Grantee"), will procure the following
capital items for use in accordance with requirements associated with its FTA Section 5339 Bus
and Bus Facilities program funding within the State:

1.1.1 Thirty (30) bus-mounted bicycle racks to replace older bicycle racks that do not
accommodate the larger electric and fat-tire bicycles that are gaining in popularity.
The current racks are deteriorating and are ready to be replaced. The racks are an
eligible capital expense under Federal Transit Administration (FTA) guidelines.

1. 1.2 Maintenance-related equipment including a SEFAC lift system, Tire changer and
balancer, AC Evacuation Machine, and a furklifl. This equipment will assist Advance
Transit with maintaining fleet vehicles.

1.2 Grant funding for all projects will be provided by the State as shown in Exhibit C.

1.3 The Grantee will purchase the capital equipment in compliance with all applicable Federal
regulations and guidance including FTA Circular 4220.IF, "Third Party Contracting
Guidance," or the most recent.

1.4 Prior to any capital procurement, the Grantee shall submit appropriate procurement
documentation demonstrating compliance with Federal procurement requirements, including
FTA Third Party Procurement guidelines per FTA Circular 4220.IF or the most recent, to the
State for review and approval. Such documentation may include, but is not limited to, the
following:

1.4.1 Verification of utilizing NH's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) directory to
invite a DBE to vie for the procurement;

1.4.2 Federal Clauses that will be required to be acknowledged by the vendor;

1.4.3 Evidence of appropriate" procurement methodology demonstrating fair and open
competition, e.g.. small procurement, Request for Proposals.

1.5 Upon written approval, the Grantee may proceed with the procurement and submit an invoice
to the State for reimbursement of project expenses in compliance with Federal guidance.

1.6 Upon the conclusion of the procurement, the Grantee shall submit final documentation to the
State.

1.7 The Grantee may submit a written request to the State's designated representative to modify the
type and/or quantity of the capital equipment detailed in the scope and budget, provided that
said changes are within the grant budget amount. Said written request must contain sufficient
details to support and substantiate the requested change(s). Within 30 days of receipt of the
Grantee's written request, the State will provide a written decision to the Grantee as to whether
or not approval is granted.



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

C. 1 The Grant Limitation price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5339 portion of the eligible project costs. Federal
funds are granted as follows: -

Project FTA Section 5339

1 30 bus-mounted bicycle racks - replacements $59,400

2 Maintenance Equipment $90,598

Total Grant Funds $149,998

1.1 Funds are contingent upon Federal appropriations. No State funds will be requested.

1.2 The Grant will provide funding through the State, from the FTA Section 5339 Bus and
Bus Facilities Program for Project #1, for 90% of the cost related to the project as
detailed in the table above, not to exceed $59,400 Federal funding. The Grantee will
pay a non-federal match of 10%, estimated at $6,600, for a total project cost of $66,000.

1.3 The Grant will provide funding through the State, from the FTA Section 5339 Bus and
Bus Facilities Program for Project #2, for 80% of the cost related to the Project as
detailed in the table above, not to exceed $90,598 Federal Funding. The Grantee will
pay a non-federal match of 20%, estimated at $22,650, for a total project cost of
$113,248.

C.2 Pre-approval of any procurement is required by the State as detailed in Exhibit B.

C.3 As applicable, the Grantee may seek reimbursement for these funds by submitting individual
invoices for projects as coiiiplclcd. Requests shall be monthly or less frequent.

C.4 The invoice(s) must include verification of source(s) of matching funds.



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Scanlan. Secretary of State of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that ADVANCE TRANSIT. fNC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 12, 1984. 1 further certify
thai all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID; 52688

Certificate Number: 0006197380

Op

u.

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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ADVANCE TRANSIT

P.O. Box 1027. Wilder, VT05088 • 802-29S-1624 • advancetransiicom

Cei tificatt; of Audiorltv

1, Rebecca Owens, heieby certify thai I am the duly elected Secretary of Advance

Transit, Incorporated. 1 hereby certify that the following is a true copy of the current Bylaws of

the Corporation and that the Bylaws authorize the Executive Director to bind the Corporation

for contractual obligations.

I further certify that Adams Carroll currently holds the position of Executive Director

and is thereby authorized to bind the Corporation for contractual obligations,

I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this

certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the position indicated and

that they have the full authority to bind the corporation. This authority shall remain valid for

thirty (30) days from the date of this certificate.

7/18/2023
DATED: ATTEST:

■DoeuSlgntd by:

Associate Planner, Planning & Development Department

fi}} l.i



BYLAWS OF

ADVANCE TRANSIT. INC.

Adopted June 19, 2015

Revised June 21, 2018

Revised May 16, 2019

ARTICLE I

Name. Purpose and Offices

Section 1. Name and Tvpe. The name of this corporation shall be Advance
Transit, Incorporated, and may hereinafter be referred to as the Corporation, "AT" or
"Advance Transit". The principal office of the Corporation shall be in Wilder, Vermont, or
such other location as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time. The
Corporation's business shall be conducted in New Hampshire and Vermont.

Section 2. Form and Purpose. The form of the corporation shall be a voluntary,
not-for-profit corporation, incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire
(R.S.A. 292), and registered to do business in the State of Vermont. The purpose of the
Corporation shall be to provide a comprehensive transportation network for the several
towns of the Upper Valley of New Hampshire and Vermont.

Section 3. Limitations. The Corporation is organized and shall be operated
exclusively for charitable, religious, educational, or scientific purposes, including for such
purposes, the making of distributions to organizations under Section 501 (c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provisions of any future Internal
Revenue law). No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall be to the benefit of or
be distributed to its Directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the
Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for
services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes
set forth above. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be for the
carrying out of propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and AT shall
not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements),
any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.



ARTICLE II

Members

Membership in the Corporation having been abolished effective July 1, 2015, the
Corporation shall have no Members.

ARTICLE III

Board of Directors

Section 1. General Powers. All corporate powers of the Corporation shall be
exercised by or under the authority of, and the affairs of the Corporation shall be managed
under the direction of, the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Number. Tenure. Qualification, and Manner of Election of
Directors.

A. The number of Directors (members of the Board) shall be not more than
nineteen (19) nor less than nine (9), chosen as provided in III.2.B., C., and F. The Board
shall have at least five (5) voting members who are not of the same immediate family or
related by blood or marriage.

B. Up to nine (9) "Municipal" Directors shall be elected by the Directors upon
nomination of the Executive Committee. Municipal Directors shall be recommended for
nomination by those Municipalities providing funding to, and served by, the Corporation.

C. For each Municipal Director serving at any time, the Board shall have one (1)
At-Large Director, elected by the Board upon nomination by the Executive Committee
with due regard for assembling on the Board a diversity of talents and backgrounds.

D. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, a Director shall serve for the longer
of: a) three (3) years, or b) until the election and qualification of his or her successor.

E. A Director shall be eligible to serve no more than three (3) consecutive three-
year terms (a partial term shall not be counted for purposes of this provision). A Director



who has served three consecutive 3-year terms shall be eligible for re-election after
having been off the Board for at least one (1) year. The Board terms shall be staggered
as much as possible so that approximately one-third (1/3) of the directors shall be elected
annually. This rule shall take effect from and after the effective date of these Bylaws. No
term of a Director that commenced prior to the effective date of these Bylaws shall be
counted against the 3-term limit for that Director.

F. In addition to Municipal and At-Large Directors, the Executive Director of AT
shall serve as a Director Ex Officio, but shall not be entitled to vote.

Section 3. Annual Meeting. The Annual Meeting of the Board shall be held in June
or on such a date and at such a time and place as the Board of Directors shall determine.
The business of the annual meeting may include, but not be limited to, the election of
Directors, the election of officers, and the presentation of reports.

Section 4. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at
least two (2) times a year, in addition to the annual meeting, at a place and time to be
decided upon by the Board during the Annual meeting. The Board may provide, by
resolution, for a different time and place for regular meetings without further notice than
by such resolution. Attendance at regular board meetings is imperative to conduct
business related to the oversight of the Corporation. Any Director who misses two (2)
regularly scheduled board meetings including annual meeting, over the course of one (1)
year may be subject to removal following the process outlined in Section 11. Removal of
Director. By prior arrangement with the President, a Director may participate in a regular
meeting by telephone or other electronic means allowing all participants to hear each
other.

Sections. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by or
at the request of the President or any two (2) Directors, and shall be held at such place
and time as the President or Directors may determine. The person or persons calling a
Special Meeting may call for the meeting to be conducted by telephone. By prior
arrangement with the President, a Director may participate by telephone in a special
meeting that is to be conducted in person, provided the Director so arranges with the
person or persons calling the meeting.

Section 6. Notice. Notice of any meeting, regular or special, of the Board shall
be given at least two (2) days previously thereto by telephone, email, or delivered
personally to each director at his or her address as shown by the records of the
Corporation.

Section 7. Quorum. A majority of the then-sitting Directors entitled to vote shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board, but if
less than a majority of the Directors is present at any meeting, a majority of the directors
present may adjourn the meeting without further notice



Section 8. Board Decisions. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a
meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board, unless the act of a
greater number is required by law or by these Bylaws.

Section 9. Action Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken
by the Board at a meeting may be taken without a meeting if the action Is taken by
unanimous consent of all Directors evidenced by one or more written consents describing
the action taken, signed by each Director, and included with the. minutes or filed with the
records of the Corporation. Action taken by consents is effective when the last Director
signs the consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date. A signed
consent has the effect of a meeting vote and may be described as such in any document.
Consents may be transmitted electronically by email or other means, provided they bear
sufficient evidence of the Director's signature.

Section 10. Proxies. At any regular, annual or special meeting of the Board, a
Director entitled to vote may vote by telephone, or by proxy executed in writing, including
email, by that director. The proxy must be limited to a specific issue, not general, and
must be signed and delivered to the Secretary one (1) day before the meeting. The proxy
shall not count toward a quorum.

Section 11. Removal of Director. Any Director may be removed from the Board
by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all of its members entitled to vote. Such action
may be taken at any regular meeting or any special meeting at which due notice of the
proposed removal shall have been given to the Board members together with or as part
of the notice of the meeting.

Such removal may be accomplished with or without cause, but the Director
involved shall be given an opportunity to be present and to be heard at the meeting at
which his or her removal is considered.

The removal of a Director may be initiated at a regular meeting of the Board
members by a motion made at the meeting, at a special meeting, or by petition signed
and submitted to the Secretary by not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the voting
Directors. More than one Director may be considered for removal under a single motion
or by a single petition for removal, but vote on the motion of petition for removal shall be
separate as to each Director.

Section 12. Vacancies and New Directorships. The Board may elect Directors
to fill any vacancies on the Board, by majority vote of the Directors present and voting at
a duly called meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present. The Board shall set a
term of office for each Director at the time of his/her election, which may in no event
exceed three (3) years.

Section 13. Compensation. No member of the Board (with the exception of the
Ex Officio member) shall receive a salary or other compensation for his/her services



except for allowable expenses incurred in connection with official duties of a Director as
defined in Board policy_

Section 14. Responsibilities. Each Director is expected to support the
Corporation as follows:

1. be fully acquainted with AT's purpose, objectives, programs, and
finances:

2. comply with all AT policies including the AT conflict of interest
policy;

3. serve on at least one {1) standing committee; and

4. fulfill those additional duties and requirements as set out in these
Bylaws.

ARTICLE IV

Officers

Section 1. Officers. The Officers of the Board shall be a President, Vice
President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, Assistant Secretary, and such other Officers as may
be elected or appointed by the Board, all of whom shall be Directors at all times they
serve as officers except for the Assistant Secretary who may be the Executive Director.

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The Officers of the Board are nominated
by the Executive Committee and elected by an affirmative vote of a majority of members
of the Board entitled to vote, and shall hold office for the longer of two (2) years or until
their successors are elected or appointed and qualified. An officer may succeed
himself/herself in the same office for two (2) additional terms. After being out of that office
for at least one (1) term, a person may again be elected to that office. The same person
may simultaneously occupy more than one office except for the President, who shall not
hold either the office of Treasurer or Secretary.

Section 3. Removal. Any Officer elected or appointed by the Board may be
removed by the Board by affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all of Directors entitled to
vote whenever in its judgment the best interests of AT would be served thereby. The
Officer involved shall be given an opportunity to be present and heard at the meeting at
which his or her removal is considered.



Section 4. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation,
removal, disqualification, or otherwise may be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion
of the term.

Section 5. Powers and Duties.

A. President. The President of the Board shall be the Corporation's principal
executive officer and shall have the following specific powers and duties:

1. To preside at all meetings of the Board and the Executive committees.

2. To appoint all committee chairs, except as othenwise provided in these Bylaws.

3. To see that all orders and resolutions of the Board are carried into effect.

4. To meet regularly with the Executive Director

5. From time to time to report to the Board of Directors all matters within his or her
knowledge that in the best interest of AT should be brought to their attention.

6. In addition to the foregoing, the President shall have such other powers, duties
and authority as may be set forth elsewhere in these Bylaws or as may be prescribed by
the Board from time to time.

B. Vice President. The Board Vice President shall exercise the powers and
perform the functions that from time to time are assigned by the President or the
Board. The Vice President shall have the powers and shall exercise the duties of the
President assigned to him or her by the Board whenever the President, by reason of
illness or other disability or absence, is unable to act, and at other times when specifically
directed by the President or the Board.

C. Secretary. The Board Secretary shall be the custodian of and shall maintain
the AT books and records and shall be the recorder of all AT formal actions and
transactions. The Secretary shall have the following specific powers and duties:

1. To record or supervise the proper recording of the minutes and transactions of
all meetings of the Directors, and to maintain separate books at the principal office of AT,
or such other place as the Board may order of all such meetings in the form and manner
required by law.

2. To keep at the principal office, open to inspection by Directors at all reasonable
times, the original or a certified copy of the Bylaws of the Corporation as amended or
otherwise altered.

4. To attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the Corporation required by
law or these Bylaws.



5. To attend to such correspondence and make such reports as may be assigned
to him/her.

6. In addition to the foregoing, the Secretary shall have such other powers, duties,
and authority as may be set forth elsewhere in these Bylaws and as may be prescribed
from time to time by the President or the Board.

D. Assistant Secretary. The Assistant Secretary shall assist the Secretary and
other Officers as requested.

E. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall oversee the financial affairs of the corporation,
and shall perform all other duties incidental to the office or assigned by the Chair, by these
Bylaws or by Board resolution. The Treasurer will serve as the Chair of the Finance
Committee, and have the following specific powers and duties:

1. To keep and maintain, open to inspection by the President and any Director, at
all reasonable times, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business
transactions of AT, which shall include all matters required by law and which shall be in
form as required by law.

2. To ensure that the Corporation adopts, implements, and follows appropriate
financial controls.

3. To render to the President and Secretary or to the Board whenever they may
require it, an account of all transactions as Treasurer and a financial statement in form
satisfactory to them, showing the condition of AT.

4. Working with AT staff, to prepare and present to the Board an annual budget.

5. In addition to the foregoing, the Treasurer shall have such other powers, duties
and authority as may be set forth elsewhere in these Bylaws, and as may be prescribed
from time to time by the President or the Board.

ARTICLE V

Executive Director

Section 1. The Board shall appoint an Executive Director (ED) who shall be
responsible for the day-to-day operation of the corporation. The ED shall be an ex-officio
member without vote of the Board and all Board committees and shall act as the duly



authorized representative of the Board in all matters except those which the Board has
formally designated some other person or group to act. The duties of the ED shall include,
but not be limited to, those outlined in the current ED job description.

ARTICLE VI

Committees and Policies

Section 1. Committees. The Board shall have the following Standing
Committees. In addition, the Board, at its discretion, may constitute and appoint additional
committees for such purpose and duration as the Board shall determine. Except for the
Executive Committee, Committees may have, in addition to a majority of Director
members, such other members as the Board shall designate, who shall serve for such
terms as the Board shall specify. All committees shall have a Board member as chair.
Committee members shall be appointed by the committee chair in collaboration with the
Board President.

A. Executive Committee. Thn Presidenl, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer,
the Chairs of Standing Committees, immediate past President, and Executive Director
shall constitute an Executive Committee, which shall be authorized to exercise the powers
of the full Board between regular meetings of the Board when it is impractical, in the view
of the President (or in the absence or unavailability of the President, a Vice-President). to
call a special meeting of the Board. The immediate past President and Executive Director
positions on the Executive Committee shall be non-voting. Any action taken by the
Executive Committee shall be presented to the Board at its next regular or special meeting
and shall be included in the minutes or other records of Board actions. The Executive
Committee shall also function as the Board Compensation Committee and Governance
Committee, with responsibility for nominating board members and board officers, for
maintaining the Corporate Bylaws and for evaluating and setting the compensation and
benefits for the Executive Director.

B. Finance Committee. The Finance Committee, working with AT's staff, is
responsible for development of AT's budget, and monitoring and adjustment of the budget
during each year and from year to year. The Finance Committee interviews prospective
audit firms and makes recommendations to the Board.

C. Personnel Committee. The Personnel Committee is responsible for policies
and procedures related to employees, employee benefits and staff levels. The Committee
makes recommendations to the Board.



D. Program Planning and Evaluation Committee. The Program Planning and
Evaluation Committee establishes the strategic direction of the organization including the
drafting and adoption of Advance Transit's Five-Year Transit Development Plan and its
associated service designs. The Committee makes recommendations to the Board.

E. Public Relations and Marketing Committee. The Public Relations and
Marketing Committee assists AT in meeting its goals and priorities through effective
strategic communication, marketing and philanthropic initiatives. The Committee makes
recommendations to the Board.

Section 2. Policies. The Board, in its discretion, may implement and adopt
policies to further define the goals and operations of the Corporation including policies
related to charitable giving, financial management, conflicts of interest, employee conduct
and other policies related to matters pertinent to AT. Policies may be implemented,
revoked or amended by the Board at any time in its sole discretion.

ARTICLE VII

Certificates of Shares

The Corporation has no shares and shall not issue share cerlincates.

ARTICLE VIII

Contracts. Checks. Deposits. Gifts and Expenditures

Section 1. Contracts. The Board may authorize any officer or officers, agent or
agents of the Corporation, in addition to the officers so authorized by these Byla\ws, to
enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf
of AT, and such authority may be general or may be confined to specific instances.

Section 2. Checks. Drafts or Orders. All checks, drafts or orders for the payment
of money, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued in the name of AT shall be
signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of AT and in such manner as shall from
time to time be determined by resolution of the Board. In the absence of such



determination by the Board, such instruments shall be signed by the Executive Director
and countersigned by the President of the Board or Treasurer.

Section 3. Deposits. All AT funds shall be deposited from time to time to the credit
of AT, in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board may select.

Section 4. Gifts. The Board may accept on behalf of AT any contribution, gift,
bequest, or devise.

Section 5. Approval of Expenditures. Any proposed expenditure of $100,000 or more,
not included in the approved capital and/or operating budget, requires an affirmative vote
of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Board entitled to vote, the notice of which has
specified the details regarding the proposed expenditure.

ARTICLE IX

Books and Records

AT shall keep: (i) correct and complete books and records of accuunls; (ii) minutes
of the proceedings of its Board and committees; and (iii) at its principal office, a record
giving the names and addresses of the Directors entitled to vote. All books and records
of AT are open to inspection by a Director or his/her agent or attorney upon reasonable
written request to the Executive Director or Board President.

ARTICLE X

Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of AT shall be from July 1 through June 30.



ARTICLE XI

Amendment of Bylaws

These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed, and new Bylaws may be
adopted by: (1) a majority of the directors of the Board present at any regular meeting or
at a special meeting, if at least seven (7) days' written notice is given to all directors of
intention to alter, repeal, or adopt new Bylaws at such meeting, or (2) an affirmative vote
at any regular meeting of two-thirds (2/3) of all of the directors of all of the Board entitled
to vote.

ARTICLE XII

Conflicts of Interest and Pecuniary Benefit Transactions

The Directors, officers, members of standing and ad hoc committees and
employees of AT have a responsibility to avoid conflicts of interest and the appearance
of such conflicts, and to transact the affairs of AT honestly and economically in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations and in a manner which promotes the
best interests of AT. The Board has adopted a written conflicts of interest policy, which is
appended to these Bylaws as Attachment A.

ARTICLE XIII

Waiver of Notice

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of Chapter 292
of the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated or these Bylaws, a waiver thereof, in
writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after
the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.



ARTICLE XIV

Dissolution

Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, the Board shall, after paying or making
provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the Corporation, dispose of all the assets
of the Corporation exclusively for the purposes of AT, in such manner or to such
organization or organizations organized and operated exclusively for charitable,
education, religious or scientific purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt
organization or organizations under 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or
the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law). Any such
assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the Superior Court of the county in
which the principal office of AT is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such
organization or organizations as said court shall determine, which are organized and
•operated exclusively for such purposes.

ARTICLE XV

Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Each officer, Director of the Corporation and member of a Board standing or ad
hoc committee now or hereafter serving as such shall be indemnified by the Corporation
against any and all claims and liabilities to which he or she has or shall become, by reason
of serving or having served as such officer, Director or committee member, or by reason
of any action alleged to have been taken, omitted, or neglected by him or her as such
officer. Director or committee member; and the Corporation shall reimburse each such
person for all legal expenses reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with any
such claim or liability; provided, however, that no such person shall be indemnified
against, or be reimbursed for, any expense incurred in connection with any claim or
liability arising out of his or her own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The amount
paid or reimbursed to any officer, Director or committee member by way of indemnification
shall not exceed his or her actual, reasonable, and necessary expenses incurred in
connection with the matter involved. The right of indemnification hereinabove provided
for shall not be exclusive of any rights to which any officer. Director of the Corporation or
committee member may otherwise be entitled by law.



ATTACHMENT A

Policy on Conflict of Interest and Pecuniary Benefit Transactions

Conflict of Interest and Pecuniary Benefit Transactions.

A. General. It shall be against the policy of the Corporation to have conflicts of
interest with its directors, officers, members of standing or ad hoc committees, staff or
members of their immediate families. A conflict of interest exists when there is a potential
that.an individual may obtain a direct or indirect pecuniary benefit, or any other improper
gain or advantage, as a result of activities conducted on behalf of AT, or when actions
advance a person's interests or those of another rather than the interests of AT, or when
actions are adverse to the best interest of AT.

Xhere exists between Advance Transit and its Board, officers, members of
standing and ad hoc committees, and management employees a fiduciary duty. The
Board, officers, committee members, and management employees have the
responsibility of administering the affairs of Advance Transit honestly and prudently, and
of exercising their best care, skill, and judgment for the sole benefit of Advance Transit.
Those persons shall exercise the utmost good faith in all transactions involved in their
duties, and they shall not use their positions with Advance Transit or knowledge gained
from their position for their personal benefit. The interests of the organization must have
the first priority in all decisions and actions.

B. Annual Questionnaire. Each Director, Board committee member, the
Executive Director, and all employees of AT designated by the President, shall annually
complete a questionnaire to provide information on their related entities and persons and
business activities and those of their immediate families as defined by statute, and such
questionnaire shall be reviewed by the President and Secretary and kept on file at the
office of the Corporation.

C. Pecuniary Benefit Transactions. In the event of a pecuniary benefit
transaction as defined by New Hampshire law in RSA 7;19-a, it shall be the policy of the
corporation to follow the statute. In the event the corporation or any director becomes
aware of any potential pecuniary benefit transaction as defined by law, the corporation
shall follow the procedures prescribed by law and give notice of the transaction to the full
board with notice of its next meeting. At the meeting, the board shall vote on whether the
pecuniary benefit transaction is in the best interest of the corporation, after full explanation
thereof and without the director being present and without any director who has had a
pecuniary benefit transaction within the fiscal year being present. If two-thirds of the
entire board shall vote that the pecuniary benefit transaction is in the best interest of the
corporation, the transaction shall be allowed. Notice of any such pecuniary benefit
transaction the value of which is $5000 or more shall be published according to
statute. Notice of all pecuniary benefit transactions shall be given to the Director of



Charitable Trusts of the State of New Hampshire annually, and individually for those
transactions exceeding $5000.

D. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest.

1. Individuals covered by this policy have a duty to voluntarily disclose any potential
conflict of interest prior to assuming their responsibilities or at the time the potential
conflict arises. Further, those individuals have a duty to annually disclose-potential or
actual conflicts to the Board. Immediate family members are also included for disclosure
purposes. Immediate family members are defined as; spouse, child, parent, sibling, and
any person living in the same household as persons with responsibilities to transact the
affairs of AT. Any possible conflict of interest on the part of any director, officer, Board
committee member, employee or selected volunteer of AT shall be disclosed in writing to
the Board and made a matter of record through the annual procedure set out in the
conflicts of interest policy and also when the interest involves a specific issue or
transaction before the Board.

2. The Board will comply with all the requirements of New Hampshire law with
respect to conflicts of interest, including but not limited to:

(i) the requirement of a two-thirds (2/3) vote of disinterested directors when
the financial benefit to the director or officer is $500 or more in a fiscal year,

(ii) the advance notice requirements when the benefit exceeds $5,000 in a
fiscal year,

(iii) the limitations on participation by the affected director, officer. Board
committee member, employee or selected volunteer of AT in the decision of
the Board,

and

(iv) the requirement to create a record of the action in the minutes.

D. Role of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall review

the conflicts of interest policy at least annually and oversee the Conflict of Interest
disclosure process assuring that individuals covered by this policy are informed of its
disclosure requirements consistent with applicable laws. The Executive Committee shall
annually conduct a comprehensive survey of the individuals covered by this policy and
analyze other relevant information which may provide information that a potential or actual
conflict of interest exists. The Executive Committee will then report the results of this
process to the Board.
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

MKAVANAGH

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

7/10/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
1EL0W. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
.■REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer riahts-to the-certiflcate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Hickok & Boardman Insurance Group
346 Shelburne Rd
Burlington, VT 05401

CONTACT Melissa Kavanagh

f.,,: (802) 383-1621 i (iCc.Noi:(802) 658-0541
mkavanaqh(a)hblnsurance.com

INSURFR(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC «

INSURER A Acadia Insurance Comoanv 31325

INSURED

Advance Transit, Inc.
PO Box 1027
Wilder, VT 05088

INSURER B Continental Western Insurance 10804

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL SUBR
POLICY NUMBER niilni/>iiVt'eValffl'l>'/i*!i4aV*'eai LIMfTS 1

A X COMMERCIAL GE NERAL LIABIUTY

E [ X 1 OCCUR X CPA-5153286-19 7/1/2023 7/1/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTED ^  300,000

MED EXP (Anv one t>«rsonl
,  10,000

PERSONAL A ADV INJURY
^  1,000,000

GE^J-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY i X 1 5"^^ 1 X I LOC
GENERAL AGGRFGATF

,  2,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
^  2,000,000

s

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

CAA5474531-12 7/1/2023 7/1/2024 1

rnMRiNPn .siNai F ■ imit ,  5,000,000

7^1 ANY ALITO ' eOOlLV INJURY fPer oersonl s

OWNED '
Ai irns nNi y

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
A1ITOR

NQN-QVVNEp
AUTOS ONIy

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
rriorcnrT oamaoc
fPer Bcodenll

$

s

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE CUA5474532-12 7/1/2023 7/1/2024
EACH OCCURRENCE

J  4,000,000

AGGREGATE
j  4,000,000

DED 1 1 RETENTIONS s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ^ / n
ANY PROPRIETOR/PAfiTNER/EXECUTIVE fTTj
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory 10 NH) '
If y«s. describe ur^der
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Iwlow

N/A
WCA5153288-19 7/1/2023 i 7/1/2024

y PER OTH-
A .RTATUTF FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDFNT
,  1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - FA FMPl OYFE
,  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
^  1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional R»m«fk» Seheduli, may b« ■Machtd If mor« »p«e« l« f«qulr#dj ^ i. j
Additional Insured status applies for The New Hampshire Department of Transportation on the General Liability policy per terms and conditions of attached
form CG 2010 04/13.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department of Transportation
Bureau of Rail and Transit
PO Box 483
Concord, NH 03302

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25(2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



POLICY NUMBER: GLR 0574256 06 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 10 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s)
Or Orqanization(s) Location(s) Of Covered Operations

ON FILE WITH THE COMPANY

Information required to complete this Schedule, If not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to
include as an additional insured the person{s)
or organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but
only with respect to liability for "bodily injury",
"property damage" or "personal and adver
tising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by:
1. Your acts or omissions: or

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on
your behalf;

in the performance of your ongoing operations
for the additional insured{s) at the location(s)
designated above.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional in
sured is required by a contract or agree
ment, the insurance afforded to such addi
tional insured will not be broader than that
which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional
insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds. the following additional
exclusions apply:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury"
or "property damage" occurring after:

1. All work, including
equipment furnished
such work, on the
service, maintenance

materials, parts or
in connection with
project (other than
or repairs) to be

2.

performed by or on behalf of the additional
insured(s) at the location of the covered
operations has been completed; or

That portion of "your work" out of which
the injury or damage arises has been put to
its intended use by any person or organiza
tion other than another contractor or sub
contractor engaged in performing opera
tions for a principal as a part of the same
project.

CG 20 10 04 13 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2



C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 2. Available under the applicable Limits of
additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations:
Section III - Limits Of Insurance: whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured Is -p^jg endorsement shall not increase the appli-
required-by-a-contract or agreement, the most cable"liimits-of-lnsurance shown in the Declara-
we will pay on behalf of the additional insured tions.
is the amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13



Ceriiilcalions and Assurances Fiscal Year 2023

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2023 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR rVA
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing'Cerllfications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name orAnnlicnnt: 1^ C .

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: {c/iecA- here) _

O/-.

The Applicant cenitles to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Ciuegory Certification

01 Certifications and Assurances Required of EVC17 Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safely Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Granls and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investmeni Grants Pilot Program

1 1 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Cerlificarions and Assurances Fiscal Yeai 202j

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Progi'ams

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Seiwice

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybcrsecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSUR.\NCES SlGNATURt: PACE

AFFIRMATION OF APPIJCANT

,  ,, , , , yADVAAJce immn,
Namo of ilic Appiicaiii: •

BY SIGNING BELOW, on hchaif of the Applicant. I declare that it has duly authorized me to make these
Ccrtificaiions and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all fcileval laws, regulations,
and requirements, follow applicable federal guidance, and comply witli the Certifications ami .A.ssuranccs as
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each application ii.s Authorized kcpivscntative makes to the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, irrespective of whether the individual that acted on his or
her Applicant's behalf continues to represent it.

The Certillcations and .A.ssurances the Applicant selects apply to eacfi Award for which it now seeks, or may
later seek fedei-al assistance to be awarded by FTA during the feJeitil fiscal year.

The Applicant afTimis the imihfiilness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the
statements submitted wiili thi.s document and any other submission made to FTA. and acknowledges that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986.31 U.S.C. § 3801 ctscq., and implementing U.S. DOT regulaiion.s.
••Program Fraud Civil Remedies." 49 CFR pan 31. apply to any certification, assurance or ,submis.sion made to
FTA. The criminal provisions ofl8 U.S.C. §1001 apply to any eeriificaiion. a.s.sur3nce. or .submission made in
connection with a federal public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other staiiile



Cerlillcalions anti Assurancei: Fiscal Year 2023

In siuiiing ihis cJociimcnl. I declare under ponallics oi'porjur^' that the foregoing Ceriifieaiions and Assurances, and
any other statenieni^tiade by me on behalf of the Applicant are tnie and accurate.

I-S' - ■3093Smnaiure ; Date.

Name C Mt. ^ (j X ui t. I \J t' 1)' f^Suilhurized Representative of Applicant



FFY 2022 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal fimds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NF3D0T).

I acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2022 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

Name of Agency Date

Name of Authorized Official P/C f\_ ^^^lature



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/18/2022

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name ofAwarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name ofSubrecipient/Contracting Agency: Advance Transit, Inc.

Advance Transit, Inc.. shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and
requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required
by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $59,400 (The amount of$59,400 is the only amount requestedfrom this grant, the balance of$90,598

will be allocated from the balance remaining in NH-34-0001)

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.509
FTA Award Name; FTA SECTION 5339 BUS & BUS FACILITIES PROGRAM

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): 1385-2023-1

Federal Award Date: TBD

Contact information for sub-awarding officials:

Name: Michelle L. Winters Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit

Email: Michelle.L.Winters@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449 - Director
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient/Contractor Information:

Subrecipient/ContractorName: Advance Transit, Inc.

Subrecipient/Contractor SAM.GOV I.D.: XRDYJ3TWHTZ5

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Matthew Osbom

Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: President

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient/Contractor Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approvedfederally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated betsveen the subrecipient/contractor and the Federal
Government or. ifno such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect. (F&A) costs,
paragraph (f)).

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: 7/1/23 End Date: 6/30/24



Ui'itnitait'ii) •^Tr*i>j/n>r(/iri<i

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/18/2022

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (coniract/amentlmcnO:

For FFY; 2023 Section: 5339 Amount: $59,400.

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient (orhinal contraci & nmemiinenisy.

For FFY: 2023 Section: 5339 Amount: $59,400

Pass-through requirements:

The Subrccipient/Contractor, Advance Transit. Inc. agrees to meet all requirements imposed by
the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is used in
accordance with Federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrecipient/Coiitractor, Advance Transit, Inc. agrees to any additional requirements that
the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through
entity (NHDOT) in order for pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the
Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required financial and
performance reports.

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Advance Transit, Inc. agrees to permit the pass-through entity
(NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements as
necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and appropriate terms
and conditions concerning closcout of the sub-award.

Date:

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Matthew Osborn

Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: President

Signature of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official:



Internal Revenue Service

District

Director

Department of the Treasury

P.O. Box 16M. GPO Brooklyn. NY 11202

Date: MAY 1 3 1996

Advance Transit, Inc.
Billings Commerce Park
Post Office Box 635
Wilder, VT 05088-0635

Person to Contact:

Patricia Holub

Contact Telephone Number:
(718) 480-2333
EIN: 22-2558708

Dear Sir or Madam:

Reference is made to your request for verification of the
tax exempt status of Advance Transit, Inc.

A determination or ruling letter issued to an organization
granting exemption under the Internal Revenue Code remains in
effect until the tax exempt status has been terminated, revoked
or modified.

Our records indicate that exemption was granted as shown below.

binccreiy yours,

PatriOia Holub
Manager, Customer
Service Unit

m

Name of Organization: Advance Transit, Inc.

Date of Exemption Letter: February 1985

Exemption granted pursuant to section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Foundation Classification (if applicable): Not a private
foundation as you are an organization described in sections
509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) of the Internal Revenue Code
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Independent Auditors'Report

To the Board of Directors of

Advance Transit, Inc.
Wilder, Vermont

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Advance Transit, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Advance
Transit, Inc. as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Advance Transit, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufTlcient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Managementfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Advance Transit, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit ofthe Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole arc free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatemenls are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

PO Box 886, 368 River Street. Springfield, VT 05156 802-885-5340 Fax 802-885-4999
174 Court Street, Laconia.NH 03246 603-527-8721 Fax 603-527-8187

Website: \v\vw.vcroff-aiisiii\.coin
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Advance Transit, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Advance Transit, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We arc required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 29, 2022, on our
consideration of Advance Transit, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Advance Transit, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Advance Transit, Inc.'s intemal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

^  ■
Veroff & Austin PLLC

Laconia, New Hampshire
August 29, 2022
VT Reg. #092.013574

PO Box 886, 368 River Street, Springfield. VT 05156 802-885-5340 Fax 802-885-4999
174 Court Street, Laconia, NH 03246 603-527-8721 Fax 603-527-8187

Website; www.vcroff-austiii.com



ADVANCE TRANSIT, [NO.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Restricted municipal and contract pledges receivable
Prepaid expenses

Security deposits

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Payroll protection program note payable
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

Designated

Capital reserve

Operating reserve

Strategic reserve

Undesignated

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

3,965,379 $ 3,451,227

802,599 494,183

1,691,364 926,066

253,007 261,016

27,715 -

6,740,064 5,132,492

10,341,035 10,956,634

17,081,099 $ 16,089,126

71,835 $ 159,212

182.828 212,013

- 743

254,663 371,968

673,300

254,663 1,045,268

500,000 459,190

2,000,000 1,900,000

442,700 500,000

1,896,773 344,294

11,986,963 1 1,840,374

16,826,436 15,043,858

17,081,099 $ 16,089,126

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year ending June 30, 2022

Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Federal government: section 5311, operating S  3,913,887 $ -  $ 3,913,887

Federal and state government: section 5339/531 1, capital -
505,953 505,953

Federal government: CMAQ, operating 241,499 -
241,499

Contract 289,811 1,310,065 1,599,876

.Municipal 265,645 381,299 646,944

State of New Hampshire 34,782 -
34,782

Donations 92,569 51,806 144,375

Sponsorships 68,976 -
68,976

PPP Loan Forgiven 682,172 - 682,172

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 13,550 - 13,550

Other 10,529 - 10,529

Net assets released from restrictions 2,147,967 (2,147,967) -

Total revenue and support 7,761,387 101,156 7,862,543

EXPENSES

Program services

Public and other transporalion 5,178,666 -
5,178,666

Total program services 5,178,666 -
5,178,666

Support services

General and administrative 829,455 -
829,455

Fundraising 71,844 -
71,844

Total support services 901,299 -
901,299

Total expenses 6,079,965 -
6,079,965

Change in net assets before transfers 1,681,422 101,156 1,782,578

Transfers of local share to restricted (45,433) 45,433 -

Net assets, beginning of year 3,203,484 11,840,374 15.043,858

Net assets, end of year S  4,839,473 S 11,986,963 $ 16.826,436

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
-4-



ADVANCE TRANSIT. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the year ending June 30, 2021

Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Federal government: section 53I I, operating S  4,347,595 $ -  $ 4,347,595

Federal and state government: section 5339/5311 capital -
951,359 951,359

Federal government: CMAQ, operating 170,000 170,000

Federal government: RTAP 1,704 -
1,704

Contract 335,897 691,000 1,026,897

Municipal 128,850 235,066 363,916

State of Vermont 110,000 -
110,000

Other 49,704 -
49,704

Donations 175,787 -
175,787

Net assets released from restrictions 2,189,583 (2,189,583) -

Total revenue and support 7,509,120 (312,158) 7,196,962

EXPENSES

Program services

Public and other transporation 5,488,952 - 5,488,952

Total program services 5,488,952 - 5,488.952

Support services

Gcncial and adiniitistrative 779,213 - 779,213

Fundraising 87,981 -
87.98!

Total support services 867,194 -
867,194

Total expenses 6,356,146 -
6,356,146

Change in net assets before transfers 1,152,974 (312,158) 840,816

Transfers of local share to restricted (117,179) 117,179 -

Net assets, beginning of year 2,167,689 12.035,353 14,203,042

Net assets, end of year S  3,203,484 $ 1 1,840,374' S 15,043,858

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
-5-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the year ending June 30, 2022

Program

Services Support Services

Public

and Other

Transportation

General and

Administrative Fundraising

Total

Support

Services Total

Expenses:

Salaries $  2,469,508 $ 279,544 $  - $ 279,544 $ 2,749,052

Payroll taxes 177,020 33,038 - 33,038 210,058

Benefits 562,102 80,929 - 80,929 643,031

Fuel 205,790 1,428 - 1,428 207,218

Repairs 221,623 1,676 - 1,676 223,299

Consulting - 265,064 44,038 309,102 309,102

Office 43,142 62,362 27,806 90,168 133,310

Insurance 277,106 10,688 - 10,688 287.794

Travel 1,767 215 - 215 1,982

Uniforms 19,642 - - - 19,642

COVID 19 supplies and equipment 3,895 1,278 - 1,278 5,173

Building 132,878 - - - 132,878

Parts inventory 6,113 - - - 6,113

Interest - 8,873 - 8,873 8.873

Depreciation 1,058,080 84,360 - 84,360 1,142,440

Total expenses $  5.178,666 $ 829,455 $  71,844 $ 901,299 $ 6,079,965

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
-6-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the year ending June 30, 2021

Program

Services Support Services

Expenses:

Salaries

Payroll taxes

Benefits

Fuel

Repairs

RTAP grant

Consulting

Office

Insurance

Travel

Uniforms

COVID 19 supplies and equipment

Building

Parts invenloiy

Depreciation

Total expenses

Public

and Other

Transportation

2,566,112 $

189,477

711.195

165,393

215,572

1,704

0

40,967

307,080

1,840

19,669

75,271

151,180

27,032

1.016.460

General and

Administrative

394,914

39,714

104.335

973

2,569

87,320

60,094

9,274

151

2,105

77,764

Fundraising

49,945

38,036

Total

Support

Services

394,914 $

39,714

104,335

973

2,569

137,265

98,130

9,274

151

2,105

77,764

Total

2,961,026

229,191

815,530

166,366

218,141

1,704

137,265

139,097

316,354

1,991

19,669

77,376

151,180

27,032

1,094,224

$  5,488,952 $ 779,213 $ 87,981 $ 867,194 $ 6,356,146

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
-7-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ending June 30, 2022 and 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Gain (loss) on disposal of equipment

PPP Loan forgiven

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in municipal and contract pledges receivable

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses

(Increase) decrease in inventory

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll expenses

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment

Proceeds from the sale of equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

2022 2021

1,782,578 S 840,816

1,141,996 1,094,224

(13,550) 4,500

(673,300) -

(308,417) 306,570

(765,298) 60,625

(4,674) 54,723

(15,032) -

(87,381) 90,615

(29,186) (23,506)

(743) (40,071)

1,026,993 2,388,496

(535,890) (1,062,442)

23,050 -

(512,840) (1,062,442)

514,153 1,326,054

3,451,226 2,125,172

3,965,379 S 3,451,226

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Advance Transit, Inc. (the "Organization") is a voluntary, not-for-profit corporation incorporated under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire and is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes
within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Its mission is
to provide a comprehensive transportation network for the several towns of the Upper Connecticut River
Valley Region of New Hampshire and Vermont.

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization are prepared on the accrual basis. Under the accrual basis,
revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred.
The significant accounting policies followed by the Organization are described below to enhance the
usefiilness of the financial statements to the reader.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization adheres to the Presentation of Financial Statements for not-for-profit organizations topic
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC
958 205). Under FASB ASC 958-205, the Organization is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets. Descriptions of the two net asset
categories are as follows:

Without donor restrictions - Those resources not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. The Board
of Directors has discretionary control over these resources. Designated amounts represent those net
assets that the board has set aside for a particular purpose.

With donor restrictions - Those resources subject to donor-imposed restrictions that will be
satisfied by action of the Organization or by the passage of time.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted, highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The Organization's bank deposit account balances are Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC")
insured up to $250,000, and any excess amounts are fully collateralized by the depository bank through
use of a variety of sweep accounts designed to maintain Organization deposit balances at levels below the
FDIC coverage limit.

-9-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue Recognition

A substantial portion of the Organization's revenue and support is derived from cost reimbursernent
contracts with the States of New Hampshire and Vennont. Revenue and support is recognized when
reimbursable expenditures are incurred. Payments arc received, up to each of the contracts' respective cost
limitations upon the Organization's submiltal of written requests for reimbursement of allowable
expenditures.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted (without donor restrictions) or restricted (with donor
restrictions) support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires, (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose
restriction is accomplished), restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor
arc reported as inereases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the
contributions are recognized.

Pledges

Unconditional promises to give. Including capital campaign pledges, are recognized as revenues in the
period received and as assets, decreases of liabilities, or expenses depending on the form of the benefits
received. Promises to give are recorded at net realizable value if expected to be collected in one year and at
fair value if expected to be collected in more than one year. Conditional promises to give are recognized
when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to an allowance based on its assessment of the amounts deemed collectible. It is the
Organization's policy to charge off uncollectible receivables when management determines that the
receivable will not be collected.

in order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to
Advance Transit, Inc., separate accounts are maintained for each activity. They are as follows:

Public and Other Transportation - accounts for revenue and expenses involved with operating fixed
public transportation routes as well as other non-fixed routes open to the public and expenses for
administration and direct trip reimbursement subcontracted by other agencies or programs.

Rural Transit Assistance Program ("RTAP") - accounts for revenue and expenses associated with
training in non-urbanized areas.

- 10-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income Taxes

Advance Transil. Inc. is a noi-for-proni organizaiion thai is c.xcmpi Irom income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classitled by the Internal Revenue Service as other than a
private foundation.

The Organization has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740. Accouniing for Income Taxes.
Accordintdly, management has evaluated the Organization s tax pt)sitit)ns and concluded that the
Organizaiion had mainiained its lax-excmpi status, has properly reported any .significant unrelated
busine.ss income and had taken no uncertain tax posiiion.s that require adju.stment or disclosure in the
financial statements.

The Organization's Forms 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax, for the years ending
June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019 arc subject to examination by the IRS. generally for three years after ihcy
were filed.

Property and Equipment

The Organization records purchases of equipment at cost. Expenditures for property, plant and equipment
with a cost greater than $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are computed on the straight-
line method based on the following useful lives. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and improvements,
which do not materially extend the useful lives of the assets, are expensed.

Years

Land improvements 15
Buildings and improvements 10-50
Transportation, office, shop, communication and radio equipment 5-12

The Organization's facility and certain transportation equipment are subject to liens held by the States of
New Hampshire and/or Vermont as agents for the Federal Transit Administration or other Federal agencies
to provide for compliance with grant requirements. New Hampshire and/or Vermont also hold the title to
any equipment while subject to a lien. Substantially all of the Organization's property and equipment,
including related financing of these assets, are subject to these requirements. Therefore, the net assets
related to property and equipment acquired through grants is reported as restricted.

Deferred revenue

The Organization records deferred revenue, which represents sponsorship, local grant match pledges, and
advertising income covering periods beyond June 30, 2022 and unearned sponsorship and municipal
assistance received in advance of the period to which the revenue relates.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Organization are entitled to paid vacation and paid sick days, depending on length of
service. Employees are allowed to accumulate unused vacation time up to a maximum of 125% of annual
hours earned and based on the number of years employed by the Organization.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Compensated Absences (continued)

Employees that present a COVlD-19 vaccination card are also awarded 8 additional vacation hours for each
vaccination shot received. Twice annually employees may request a payout of up to 32 hours of vacation
time and must be paid out in 8-hour increments. Employees are entitled to a payout of all unused vacation
time upon separation of employment from the Organization.

Unused sick leave may accrue indefinitely without limit. Employees may also request a pay out of sick
leave accrued in excess of 200 hours at a rate of 3 hours of sick leave for each one hour of pay. Employees
are not entitled to any payout of unused sick leave upon separation of employment from the Organization.

Designation of Unrestricted Net Assets

It is the policy of the Board of Directors to' review its plans for future property improvements and
acquisitions, as well as other operating needs, from time to time and to designate appropriate sums of
unrestricted net assets to assure adequate financing of such purposes.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable include funds due the Organization under various grant award agreements.
Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 consisted of the following:

2022 2021

New Hampshire Department of Transportation $  400,032 $ 191,718

Vermont Agency of Transportation 384,128 267,645

Contracts -
7,323

Federal and state excise tax 18,430 23,963

Federal employment credits - 2,611

Other 9 923

Total accounts receivable $  802,599 S 494,183

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED MUNICIPAL AND CONTRACT FLEDGES RECEIVABLE

2022 2021

Donor restricted contributions:

Town of Hanover 'B  150,783 $ -

Town of Hartford 81,747 81,747

Town of Norwich 13,514 13,514

City of Lebanon 124,855 124,855

Town of Enfield 5,400 5,400

Town of Canaan 5,000 9,550

Michaels Student Living LLC 540,036 -

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center 128,100 122,000

Dartmouth College 641,929 569,000

Total $  1,691,364 $ 926,066
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED MUNICIPAL AND CONTRACT PLEDGES RECEIVABLE (continued)

All contributions will be received and recognized in FY2023 except for Michaels Student Living LLC,
which will be received as follows;

FY2023 $ 150,000

FY2024 100,000
FY2025 100,000

FY2026 100,000

FY2027 100,000

FY2028 25,000

Less unamortizcd discount (34,964)

Total $ 540,036

The discount rate on the Michael's pledge is calculated at the 5-year Daily Treasury Par Yield Curve
Rate, 2.88% at June 30, 2022.

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following as of June 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Land $ 263,358 3;  263,358

Land improvements 47,804 47,804

Buildings and improvements 4,376,456 4,357,300

Transportation equipment 11,521,017 11,429,226

Communication and radio equipment 130,244 99,411

Office and shop equipment 938,341 833,124

17,277,220 17,030,223

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 6,936,185 6,073,589

Property and equipment, net $ 10,341,035 3;  10,956,634

NOTE 6 - LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has available a bank line of credit for up to $200,000 at June 30, 2022 and 2021. The
line of credit is due on demand and secured by the business assets of the Organization. Draws on the line
of credit bear interest based on the Wall Street Journal Prime rate (currently indexed to 3.25%) for the
year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. There were no outstanding balances on this line of credit as of June
30, 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 7 - PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM GRANT

On April 3, 2020 the Organization applied for and was granted a loan from a bank in the aggregate
amount of $673,300 pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the "PPP") under Division A, Title I
of the CARES Act, which was enacted March 27, 2020. The loan was forgiven in full by the lender and
has therefore been reported on the Statement of Activities for the year ended June 30, 2022 as grant
income.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 8 - NET ASSETS

Board Designated Net Assets

In June 2016, the Board approved the establishment of a Board designated capital reserve fund. In
November of 2018 the Board approved a change that modified the purpose to include funds committed
for the coming fiscal year as part of the budget process and amounts that are beyond that period but
reasonably certain to be incurred. This figure will be adjusted as capital match requirements change.
Effective with fiscal year 2021, the capital match reserve was set at $500,000.

In January 2016 the Board approved the establishment of a Board designated operating reserve fund. The
purpose of the operating reserve fund is to set aside approximately four months of operating expenses for
the organization. As of June 30, 2022 the minimum operating reserve calculated and set aside by the
Board amounted to $2 million. The amount of the operating reserve target minimum will be reassessed
annually.

During FY2021 the Organization's Board of Directors established a strategic reserve fund. The Strategic
Reserve is intended to provide a ready source of funds for strategic initiatives necessary for the effective
operation of the organization and programs. The target amount of the Strategic Reserve will be
determined by reference to the forecasted needs of the organization, with the minimum established in an
amount deemed sufficient to cover needs identified in the current strategic plan. The initial target
Strategic Reserve is equal to $500,000. The amount of the Strategic Reserve target minimum will be
reassessed at least annually.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of equipment and vehicles purchased with restricted
resources, thereby limiting the assets use to specified purposes throughout the useful life of the
assets, town appropriations approved in June 30, 2022 but to be paid in 2023 and capital campaign
pledges.

Net assets with duiioi" l estrictioiis arc comprised of the following:
2022 2021

Net property, plant and equipment funded with restricted resources
Orange/yellow line local match contribution
Municipal and contract pledges

Total net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets released from restrictions are as follows:

10,245,362 $  10,887,606
50,237 40.640

1,691,364 922,128

1 1,986,963 $  11,840,374

Purpose restrictions accomplished:
Depreciation on restricted assets
Expiration of purpose restrictions on capital campaign funds
Expiration of purpose restrictions on orange/yellow line (CMAQ)
Expiration of purpose restrictions on capital purchases not depreciated
Expiration of time restrictions on contributions receivable
Expiration of purpose restrictions on bus disposals

Total net assets released from restrictions
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2022 2021

$  1.138,681 $  1,092,241
- 100,000

42,209 -

31,511 6,151

926,066 986,691

9,500 4,500

$ 2,147,967 S  2,189,583



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization sponsors a salary reduction contribution plan pursuant to Section 403(b) of the Internal
Revenue Code, covering substantially all employees. Under the plan, employees contribute a specified
percentage of their salary, or a fixed dollar amount, to the plan. The Organization may agree to make
"non-elective" contributions or a matching contribution to their employees' 403(b) plans. The
Organization currently matches 50% on the first 5% of employee deferrals. For the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021 employer contributions to the plan amounted to S36,192 and $23,829, respectively.

NOTE 10-ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Organization receives substantial grant/contract funds from the New Hampshire Department of
Transportation and Vermont Agency of Transportation and is dependent upon this funding to support
most of its activities and operations. Funding from the States of Vcnnont and New Hampshire is
renegotiated each year and is not guaranteed for future years beyond June 30, 2022 and 2023,
respectively. Loss of these funds could jeopardize the Organization's ability to continue its activities and
operations.

NOTE II - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of the balance sheet date, reduced by amounts
mil available for general use because of contractual or donor-imposed restrictions within one year of the
balance .sheet date.

2022 2021

Financial assets consist of;

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts, municipal and pledges receivable

Total financial assets

Less those unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to:
Donor restrictions

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditure
within one year

3,965,378 .$ 3,451,227

2,493,963 1,420,249

6,459,34! 4.871,476

50,237 40,640

6,409,104 $ 4,830,836

As part of the Organization's liquidity management, it invests cash in excess of daily requirements in
short-term investments through a sweep account arrangement with its primary bank.

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through August 29, 2022, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued and has determined that no subsequent events have occurred that
would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

- 15 -



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Federal Grantor Agency and Program Title

U.S. Department ofTransportation

Major Programs:

State of New Hampshire Department of
Transportation:

Formula Grants for Rural Areas

State of Vermont Agency ofTransportation:

Formula Grants

Fomiula Grants

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

Formula Grants

Fomtula Grants

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

for Rural Areas

Subtotal CFDA 20.509

Total Major Programs

Federal Transit Cluster

State of Vermont Agency ofTransportation:

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants

State of New Hampshire Department of

Transportation:

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

Total Federal Transit Cluster

CFDA

Number

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.526

20.526

20.526

20.500

20.526

Pass-Through
Identifying^
Number

NH.202I-I7

ARPA22-901

ARPA22.401

ARPA22-501

ARPA22-801

CRRSAA22-801

FT20I904-06I

FT202201-06I

FT202101 061

FT202207-061

FT202205-081

FT202205-07!

FT040021-061

NH-2O2I-0I0

Program or
Award

Amount

Awards

Expended

$ 3,570,000 $2,979,610

560,000

287,500

162,500

48,673

192,927

4.454

70,400

135,840

80,000

80,000

832,500

10,818

560,000

225,198

149,078

48,573

192,927

1.601

10,328

19.557

1.207,262

4.186,872

76,421

76,421

90,126

10,818

177,056 177,056

430,842

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $4,617,714
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY

Advance Transit, Inc. (the "Organization") is a voluntary, not-for-profit organization incorporated under
the laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292) and is engaged to provide a comprehensive
transportation network for the several towns in the Upper Connecticut River Valley Region of New
Hampshire and Vermont. The Organization was founded in January 1984 and is headquartered in Wilder,
Vermont.

NOTE 2 - SCOPE OF THE AUDIT PURSUANT TO THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") presents the activity of all Federal
award programs of Advance Transit, Inc. All Federal awards are received directly from Federal agencies
as well as Federal awards passed through other government agencies or other entities are included in the
schedule.

NOTE 3 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared in the format as set
forth in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regidations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
financial statements.

The Schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting. It includes all Federal awards to the
Organization which had expenditure activity during the year ended June 30, 2022. Several programs are
jointly funded by the State ol Vermont and State of New Hampshire appropriations in addition to Federal
Awards. The Schedule reflects only that part of the grant activity funded by Federal Awards. The
Organization has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 - CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBERS

The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the 2021 Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance.
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^ The Solution Group

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors

Advance Transit, Inc.

Wilder, Vermont

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Advance Transit, Inc.
(the "Organization"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the
related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
August 29, 2022.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's
internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the efTectiveness of the Organization s internal conttol.
Accordingly, wc do nnt express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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The Solution Group

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards (Continued)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are free
of material missiatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Veroff & Austin, PLLC

Springfield, Vermont
August 29, 2022
VT Registration #092.013574
NH Registration #077740
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The Solution Group

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal

Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance
To the Board of Directors

Advance Transit, Inc.

Wilder, Vermont

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Advance Transit, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Organization's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Organization's major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Advance Transit, Inc.'s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Organization's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Advance Transit, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.
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The Solution Group

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal

Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance (Continued)

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization's internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing ah opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a, type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

cS: Aa.Hin

Veroff & Austin, PLLC

Springfield, Vermont
August 29, 2022
VT Registration #092.013574
NH Registration #077740
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Report

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued;

Internal control over financial reporting:

•  Material Weakness(es) identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses.

Non-compliance material to the financial statements noted?

Federal A wards

Internal control over major programs:

•  Material weakness(es) identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness{es)?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with section
200.516 of the Uniform Guidance'^

Identification ofMajor Programs

Name of program or cluster
U.S. Department of Transportation - Formula Grants for Rural Areas

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under Section 200.520 of the Uniform Guidance:

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

No current year findings.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No current or prior year findings

Unqualified

No

No

No

No

No

Unqualified

No

CFDA number

20.509

S  750,000

Yes
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ADVANCE Board of Directors
TRANSIT July 2022

Mark Beliveau

Hanover Member (term ends 6/25)

Bethany Fleishman

Hartford Member (term ends 6/25)

Robert Houseman

Hanover Member (term ends 6/23)

Georgios Katsaros

Norwich Member (term ends 6/25)

Joe Major

Hartford Representative (term ends 6/24)

Nathan Miller

Vice President, Member At Large (term ends 6/24)

Kathie Nolet

Member At Large (term ends 6/23)

Patrick O'Neill

Member At Large (term ends 6/23)

Matt Osborn

President, Member At Large (term ends 6/24)

Rebecca Owens

Secretary, Lebanon Member (term ends 6/24)

Robert Starkey

Treasurer, Member At Large (term ends 6/24)

David Stewart

Member At Large (term ends 6/23)

James L. Taylor

Enfield Member (term ends 6/23)

Devin Wilkie

Lebanon Representative (term ends 6/24)



Ashley Manning

Email - amanning@advancetranslt.com

-Professional Summary—

Maintenance, Facilities, and Procurement Manager with vast knowledge and experience in public

transit. Versed in project management, organization, self-motivation and ability to work with others.

-Core Qualifications-

File/Records Management

Warranty

Inventory Management

Facility Maintenance Management

Vendor Negotiations

Procurement

Shop Scheduling

Budgets

Computer Proficient, including Excel, Dossier and Transman Maintenance Software

Organization Skills

Reports generation and analysis

Quick Learner

-Experience-

Maintenance, Facilities, & Procurement Manager 10/16-current

Advance Transit

Wilder, VT

Maintenance, Facilities, and Procurement Manager at a rural transit agency operating in both Vermont

and New Hampshire.

MPA 5/15-6/16

Casella Construction; Casella Hydraulics

Mendon, VT

Supports maintenance department in hyHrai.tllrs and growing rnnstnir.tion riivision.s. Work.s with

hydraulic technicians to provide timely, professional hydraulic repairs for customers. Duties - customer

communication; invoice generation; A/R collection duties in hydraulics; manage inventory at several

locations; repair order review; communicate with job site supervisors to schedule work and parts

deliveries. Process development - maintenance invoices; small equipment purchases/management;
regular inventory; parts returns; creating requisition lists for regular parts reordering. Responsible for



warranty submission, permits and registrations, IFTA submissions, managing assets in maintenance
software, training technicians on maintenance software.

Interim Fleet Manager; MPA 6/14-6/15
Casella Waste

Williston, VT

Worked collaboratively with the mechanics and other departments to maintain a professional, goal
based work environment. Responsibilities - inventory; shop scheduling; communicate with third party
shops; repair order review; prioritize work load to ensure trucks are safe and operational for all routes;
DOT compliance; working with operations to determine route needs and schedule maintenance.

Assistant to the Maintenance Manager 3/07-6/14
CCTA (Chlttenden Country Transportation Authority)
Burlington, VT

Successfully supported Maintenance Manager and Department. Experience includes - payroll;
processing time off requests; repair order review; report generation/analysis; purchasing; budget;
invoice processing; capital purchasing; warranty; MSDS record keeping; mechanic computer training;
Community Right-to-Know Program submissions; PM compliance; scheduled maintenance and
maintained working relationship with personnel at offsite locations; facility maintenance program;
ensuring compliance with FTA regulations.

-Education/Training-

Enhancing Your TAM Program with Lifecycle Management, NTI, 2022
Reasonable Suspicion Determination Training, RLS, 2022

Project Management for Transit Professionals, NTI, 2021
Procurement for Small and Medium Transit Systems, NTI, 2018

High School Diploma, 2004

Fair Haven Union HS - Fair Haven, VT



Catherine E. Gazda

Professional Summary ■' . -.1:

Accountant with 20 Years of Experience and a background in general ledger, cash management,
receivables, and payroll. Utilize strong attention to detail and in-depth analytical skill to deliver accurate,
thorough, and targeted results that exceed expectations.

Iducation
i-

University of Phoenix. Buffalo. NY
BS • Business (Accounting), 2007

P R O F E S S I O N A Ir-EX P E RiE N CE"

Canisius College. Buffalo, ny
Graduate Cost Accounting, 2019

Advance TRANSIT. White River Junction. Vermont

Finance Director

Town of Randolph. Randolph. Vermont
Finance Director

Health Care & Rehab Services (HCRS) Sphnofield. Vermont
Accounting Manager

Servotronics. Inc. Elma. New York
Accounting Supervisor (Jan 2019 - July 2020)
Staff Accountant (Jan 2018-Jan 2019)

Village Of East Aurora. East Aurora. New York ,
Deputy Clerk/Treasurer (2013 - 2017)
Deputy Clerk (2011 - 2013)

MultisorbTechnologies. Inc.. Buffalo. New York
General Accountant

Mattel. Inc.. East Aurora. New York
Accountant

Burke Group. Honeove Falls. New York
Processing Analyst

Dennis R. V^OOD CPA. P.C.. Gun Barrel City. Texas
Office Accountant & Administrative Assistant

Bonnie M. Philipps CPA. P.C.. East Aurora. New York
Income Tax Processor

August 2022 - Present

2022

2021

2018 - 2020

2011 - 2017

2010 - 2011

2007 - 2009

200^ - 2006

1998, 2000 • 2001

1996 - 1997



Adams

Carroll

linkedin.com/in/adamscarroll

Contact

120 Billings Farm Rd

White River Junction, VT 03766

acarroll@advancetransit.com

+ 1(802) 295-1824

Experience Advance Transit / Executive Director

JUNE 2022 - PRESENT; WILDER. VT

numo lie / Director of Operations - indi
DECEMBER 2018 - MAY 2022; PITTSBURGH. PA

Pittsburgh Bikeshare Inc. / Director of Operations and Planning
SEPTEMBER 2016 - DECEMBER 2018: PirrSBURGH, PA

Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County /

Active Mobility Planner
JANUARY 2015 - SEPTEMBER 2016; NASHVILLE. TM

Walk Bike Nashville / Program Manager
JANUARY 2012 ■ AUGUST 201-=!; NASHVILLE.TN

Hands On Nashville / Program Coordinator
NOVEMBER 2011 • FEBRUARY 2013; NASHVILLE. TN

St. Petersburg State University & Bard College / International

Program Manager

DECEMBER 2009- JUNE 2011: ST. PETERSBURG. RUSSIA

Education University of Pittsburgh - Katz School Of Business / M.B A
2019-2022. BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Vanderbilt University - Peabody College / M.Ed.

2013-2015. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND ACTION

Reed College/B.A.
2005-2009. RUSSIAN LITERATURE AND LANGUAGE


